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Strategic Report

- for the year ended 31 December 2018

The directors present their annual report on the affairs of UK Renewable HoldCo 1 Limitéd, together

-

with the financial statements and auditor's report, for the year ended 31 Décember, 29_1 8.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
. Standards (IFRSs). The financial statements have -also been prepared in accordance with IFRSs
adopted by the European Union and therefore the group financial statements comply with Article 4 of
the EU IAS Regulation.

Review of th_é business

UK Renewable HoldCo 1 Limited (UKR1) is a holding company established as a platform to-hold
‘renewable energy_investment"s’ within Europe. The Iberwind group, a regulated wind farm group
based in Portugal, constitutes the trading companies of the group (see note 25 for details). The main
business activity of the Iberwind group is: (1) the evaluation, development and opération of wind
farms in Portugal; (2) the supply of services related to the development, study and building of wind
farms; and (3) the provision of management services. The Iberwind group remains the only trading
operatidns of UKR1 at the balance sheet date and so the stfategic report primarily covers the trade '
activity of that group. UKR1 continues to-look for future potential investments which could be
acquired. :

Market review

Accorc_iing to WindEurope, 20.7 GW of electrical power 'generating units was installed "in the
~‘countries of the European Union (EU) in 2018, of which 10.1 GW was wind energy. This is a
decrease from the GW installed in 2017 (15.6 GW). In percentage terms, wind energy accounts for -
48.8% of the power facilities built in the year (55.2% in 2017). Wind energy was the sector that most
contributed to the'increase in installed capacity. It should be noted that renewable energy accounted
for 95% of total installed capacity in 2018.
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Strategic Report (continued)
Market review (continued)
- Breakdown of installed capacity in the EU in.2018

The chart below shows that in the calendar year 2018, almost half of the energy capacity growth was

within the wind farm industry'.
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Wind power annually installed i_h the European Community has been steadily developing and-
growing in recent years. Average annual growth since 2008 amounts to 4.2%. In 2013, Germany
was the country that grew most in terms of installed wind power, followed by the United Kingdom,
France and Sweden. ‘ :
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Strategic Report (continuéd) 4
Market review (continued) '

In 2018, in Portugal aﬁd according to the General Directorate of Energy and Geology (GDEG), there
was an increase in wind power linked to the public grid, which increased to 5,380 MW, compared to
---5;313 MW the.previous year- - -~z - wmomm ’

According to data from the Associégéo Portuguesa de Energias Renovaveis (APREN), Portugal
finished the year with an electricity generation total from renewable resources of 29.3TWh, while
total generation was 55.1 TWh.

Wind power in Portugal contributed significantly in 2018 to the perfofmance of the en-ergy sector.and
complied with the goals for energy generation from renewable sources. It guaranteed about 22% of
electricity production, according to data of APREN.

Whilst this group has not built any new wind farms in the year growth has been as a result of
increased generation of energy with 1,783.1 GWh generated in 2018 (2017 — 1,756.5 GWh). The
group looks to continue growth in the future through further potential investments to expand the.
number of windfarms owned by the group.. '

~ Group structure

UKR1 holds a 100% shareholding in UK Renewable HoldCo 2 Limited (UKR2), which in turn holds a

100% shareholding in UK Renewable HoldCo 3 (UKR3), both' of which are UK based holding
companies. UKR3 holds a 100% shareholding in Portugal Renewable Energy — Unipessoal Lda, the

top company of the trading group. A full list of the subsidiaries is shown in note 25.

A--Financial and operational review
Operating profit
- The consolidated operating profit of the group was €93.2 milfion (2017 - €86.5 million), composed of:

« Revenue of €182.0 million (2017 - €177.1 million), of which approximately 99% is generated by
“sales", being the regulated income; and

o Expenses of €88.8 million (2017 - €90.6 million), comprising:

1> Cost of sales amounts to €24.5 million (2017 - €24.3 million), in which the cost'of
maintenance of the wind farms, the rent of land where the wind farms and the headquarters
are located, and the premiums of insurance contracts are of particular relevance;

2> Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets of €54.2 million (2017 - €53.7 million),

3> Employee costs totalling €3.6 million (2017 - €3.5 million), resulting from the. salaries and
related payroll costs; and :

4> Other costs within expenses amount to €6.5 million (2017 - €9:1 million) mainly, being duties.

UK RENEWABLE HOLDCO 1 LIMITED 4



Strategic Report (continued)
Financial and operational review (continued)
Net financial costs

The following items are partrcularly srgmfrcant m regard to the net f nancial costs for the period of

€581 m|II|on (2017 €61.4 m||||on) i
. Gams of €nil (2017 - €0.3 mr,llron) as set out in note 2; and

¢ Financial costs of €58.1 million (2017 - €61.4 million), the main driver of the year on year .
reduction in financial costs is the reduction on the fair value movements on fmancral-
instruments, as set out in Note 2. ‘

Balance sheet position

Total assets at the balance sheet date equated to €1,157.7 million (2017- €1,205.4 miillion). The
reduction in the value of assets year on year is driven by the depreciation and amortisation of the
asset base over the remaining life of the portfolio of assets. Given there has been no investment in .
-new wind farms in the year the reduction of asset value year on year is in line with the busmess
model. :

Key performance indicators (KPls)

The key financial and non-financial KPls, as used by the Board to monitor the group are shown
below. All of the below KPI scores meet the expectation of the Board

KPI - " . Yearended 3111218 Year ended 3111212017
~ Turnover . - | € 182.0m ' €177.1m

Or)erating results | _ €93.2m | , | € 86.5m

Achreve 1SO 14001 cérti,ﬁ_cation'for safety * Achieved Achieved

Workers satisfaction | o 3.5 out of 5.0 3.8 outof5.0

Turnover of € 0.50m per day in 2018 is consistent with the prior year (2017 - € 0.49i per day). This
consistent revenue performance combined with ‘co's,t control means operating profits are up
compared to prior year on a proportional basis.

The groub continues to maintain high standards of safety with‘ the retention of 18001 OSHAS
. certification. Worker satisfaction remains important to the group as can be evidenced by the workers
satisfaction score which remains above the targeted 3.0 out of 5 in 2018.

UK RENEWABLE HOLDCO 1 LIMITED 5



Strategic Report (continued)
_Principal risks and uncertainties

The'key significant risks of the group a're, described below:

i, LoeL v

mmly.v%xmiz,.Regulated funding.and compliance.....

The trade of PTRW is regulated and the risk exists that revenue and grants may reduce by a
significant quantum. The risk of non-compliance with regulations exists which could lead to a
potential ﬁne of significance, as well as reputati‘onal damage.

To mitigate these potential risks, the group engages with the regulatory authorities to ensure it is
fully aware of any proposed changes in funding and aware of the required regulatlons to which the
group must adhere.

2> Employees

The success of the group depends to a 'significant extent on the contribution of its employees. - Fair
and effective recruitment, training and employee development are critical to the successful
functioning and progression of the business. The ability to adapt in a climate of change is
dependent on the appointment and retention of a high calibre, competent, fléxible, quality conscious
and customer focused workforce all of whom are commltted to business success. '

Mltlgatlon of this risk is achieved by an employee planning strategy that includes the development of
high calibre existing staff to increase retention, and succession planning in critical areas. Effectlve -

" resourcing and selection processes also play a posutuve role in |mprovmg the image of the group in
the,communlty it serves.

3> Health and safety

There is a risk that an incident witnin the network leads to injury to 'an employee, contractor or a
member of the general public. Any such incident could have an adverse effect on the reputation of
the group, or lead to potential prosecution or redueed productivity.

To mitigate this the group hés extensive knowledge of the appropriate health and safety legislation,
. backed up by appropriate pqucues and procedures to mitigate the risk of the group being responsnble
" for any health and safety breaches.

4> Brexit

The majonty of the operations of the group occur outside the United Kingdom and as such no
materlal impact to the group is expected to occur.

UK RENEWABLE HOLDCO 1 LIMITED = 6



Strategic Report (continued)

Financial risk management
The business is exposed to the following risk: factors (1) liquidity risk; (2) the. nsk of cash flows and
,'falr values associated with interest rates; and (3) tariff risk.

T A e e RS

1> Liquidity risk

. The management of the liquidity risk implies mamtalnmg cash and bank deposits at suffi crent levels,
ensuring the feasibility of the consolidation of floating debt through an adequate amount of credit
facilities and the ability to settle market positions. The maturities of financial instruments are -
managed to ensure no concentration of renewal dates.

Further details of llqurdrty risk are provided within the Dlrectors Report under the going concern
section.

2> Cash ﬂow and fair value risks associated with interest rates

The group has no srgnlflcant interest bearing assets but interest rate nsk arises from long-term-
liabilities. Loans issued at variable rates expose the group to cash flow risks associated with interest
rates. Loans issued at fixed rates expose it to fair value risk associated with interest rates.

- The group manages the cash flow risk associated with interest rates by transforming variable - -
interest rate swaps into fixed interest rate swaps. The interest rate swaps: have the economic effect

of converting variable interest rate loans into loans at fixed interest rates. Generally, .the. group
contracts long-term loans at variable interest rates and performs swaps to transform them into fixed -
interest rates, which are less than those contracted in fixed interest rate loans. ‘

3> Tariff risk

y . )
-The special regime electricity generation sector, from renewable energy sources, has its tariffs
regulated and so the risk of tariff fluctuations is controllable.

The group has obtained all the necessary licences that allowed .it to register its projects under
Portuguese Law (Decree-Law 198/88 and Decree-Law 168/99, last amended by Decree Law 339-
C/2001 of 29 December 2001), whlch provudes for a favourable tariff regime.

The subsidiary PEVB - Parque Edlico Vila do Bispo, Lda. - simultaneously undertook in 2011 the
repowering and 20% over-equipping of the development it operates, under the provisions of Decree-
Law 225/2007 of 31 May 2007, as amended by Decree-Law 51/2010 of 20 May 2010, remarnmg in
the above-referred tariff scheme, desprte bearing a reduction of 2.4%.
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Strategic Report (continued)
Financial ri.s'k managemént (c_ontinued')

Publication of Decree-Law 35/2013 of February 28, gave wind energy developers the opportunity to
subscribe to a new tariff scheme for the period after the explry of guaranteed remuneratlon The
“group is obliged under the Decree-Law which, through ‘payment of €5,800 (2013 to 2020) per MW-
installed for 8 years, permits its operations to be remunerated for an additional period of 7 years.
This additional remuneration will be at the market price of the preceding 12 months, with a minimum’
of €74/MWh and a maximum of €98/MWh.

Subséquent events

The directors are not aware of any events after the balance sheet date that need noting within the
annual report and financial statements.

Future prospects

The directors expect the future prospects of the group. to be cons:stent with the performance shown
w:thln this annual report and fi nancnal statements.

Approved by and by order of the Board . ' . y

/&&Z

MJ Horsley
Director

9.1 September 2019
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Directors Report
for the year ended 31 December 2018

The directors present their annual report on the affairs of the group, together with the audited
financial statements and auditor’s report, for the year ended 31 December 2018. The following

_disclosures have been disclosed-in-the-strategic-report: business, market, fi nancial and operational
review including KPI's, financial risk management, principal risks and uncertainties, events after the
- balance sheet date and future prospects

Directors

The directors, who served throughout the period and subsequently except as noted, were as follows:

L S Chan
. HL Kam
. B Scarsella“
A J Hunter
M J Horsley
" C Tsai

~The daily operatrons of the business are managed by the senior management of PTRW. Al
~ significant decrsrons are referred to the Board of Directors. Norton Rose LLP act as company

secretary
Directors’ insurance and indemnities

As permitted by the Articles of Assocfation the directors have the benefit of an indemnity Which is a

" qualifying third party indemnity provision as defi ned by Section 234 of the Companres Act 2006. The

mdemmty for the company was in force throughout the perrod
Dlvrdends

The directors do not recommend payment of a final dividend, No interim dividende were declared .
and paid in the year (2017 - €7,293,000).

Political donations

No political or charitable donations were made during the period.

Going concern

The group’s business activities, perforrhance and position, together with its principal risks and

uncertainties likely to_ affect its future development and performance are set out above within the -
strategic report. The group is able to pay its liabilities as they fall due, due to the reliability of.
regulated revenue. The group is in a current liability position of €42.5m due to short-term borrowings

of €64.1m (see note 14). The directors believe that they have adequate Irqurdrty resources to pay |ts

debts as they fall due.
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Directors Report (continued)
Going concern (continued) '

The directors have made enquiries and reviewed the forecasts, including sensitivity analysis and
_..have a reasonable expectation_that the company_and group have adequate resources to continue in

operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the Annual Report and Financial Statements.

Disabled employees

. Applicatib_ns for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the

aptitudes of the applicant concerned. In the event of employees becoming disabled every effort is

made to ensure that their employment with the group continues and that appropriate training is

arranged. It is the policy of the group that the training, career development and promotion of
disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical with that of all other employees.

Employee consultation

The group places considerable value on the involvement of its employees and has continued to keep
them informed on matters affecting them as employees and on the various factors affecting the
performance of the group, This is achieved through both formal and informal meetings. Employees
are consulted regularly on a wide range of matters affecting their current and future interests. Some
employees are eligible to receive an annual bonus related to the overall financial and operational
. performance of the group.

Auditor

Each of the directors at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

¢  so far as the director is 'awa’re, there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s
auditor is unaware; and '

e the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director to make
himselffherself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the companys
auditor is aware of that mformatlon

This bonﬁrmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisidnsof section 418
of the Companies Act 2006. The directors will place a resolution before the annual general meeting
to reappoint Deloitte LLP as auditor for the ensuing year.

Approved and authorised for issue on behalf of thé directors by:

;Z(cm{ /%4 ?

M J Horsley, Director
21 September 2019
3 More London Riverside, London, SE1 2AQ
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Directors’ Responsibilities

) The diArectors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in
.accordance with applicable law and regulations. ‘

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statéments for each financial year. Under
e —that law the -directors: have-elected-to-prepare-the group financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and-the
parent company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
‘Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law), including FRS 101
“Reduced Disclosure Framework”. Under company law the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
. company and of the prof it or loss of the company for that period.

In preparing the parent company financial statements, the directors ére required to:

select suitable accohnting policies and then apply them consistently;
make’judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, sUbject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is mappropnate to
presume that the company witl continue in business.

“In preparing the group financial statements, international Accounting Standard 1 requires that
directors: ' . -

properly select and apply accounting policies;

present information, including accouhting policies, in a manner that provides relevant,

~ .reliable, comparable and understandable information;

provide additional disélosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are
insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events
and conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial performance; and

make an assessment of the company'’s ability to contjnde asa going concern.

The directors are responsibie for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show
and explain the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
|rregular|t|es :

UK RENEWABLE HOLDCO 1 LIMITED 11
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: INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF UK RENEWABLE HOLDCO 1 LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements

-Opinion._. .. .. ' : v .
In our opinion:

* the financial - statements of UK Renewable Holdco 1 (the ‘parent company’) a'nd its

" subsidiaries (the 'group’) give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the
parent company’s affalrs as at 31 December 2018 and of the group s profit for the year then
ended

L the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union;

. the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting
Standard 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework"; and .

o the fi nancral statements have been prepared in accordance’ wrth the requrrements of the'
Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which cpmprise:
o the consolidated income statement,
¢ the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;
« the consolidated and-parent company bélance sheets; ., | :
. tI1e con'solidated and parent cornpany statements of changes in eqdity;
. the consolidated cash flow statement;
. the statement of eccounting policies; and
o the related notes 1 to 28. |

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial
statements is appllcable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European Umon The financial reporting
‘framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements is
applicable law and United Ku,ngdom ‘Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard
101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”.

UK RENEWABLE HOLDCO 1 LIMITED 12



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REvPORT‘ TO THE MEMBERS
OF UK RENEWABLE HOLDCO 1 LIMITED (continued)

Basis for opinion

We conducted our aud|t in accordance with lnternahonal Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK))

" and apphcable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the audltors
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. .

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the
Financial Reporting Council's (the ‘FRC'’s") Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We are required by ISAs (UK) >to report in respect of the following matters where:

« the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of the financial
statements.is not appropriate; or

o the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the group’s or the parent companys
ability to continue to ‘adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least -
twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authonsed for issue.

We have nothing to report)in respect of these matters.
Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
- information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. Our opinion.on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, excépt to
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in" our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. ‘

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
- the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially -
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a
‘material misstatement of the other information. If,' based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material.misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. - :

‘We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

UK RENEWABLE HOLDCO 1 LIMITED 13



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF UK RENEWABLE HOLDCO 1 LIMITED (continued)

Respons_ibilities of directors

As explamed more fuIIy in the directors’ responsnbnlntles statement, the directors are responsible for

the preparatlon of the fi nancual statements and for belng satisfied that they give a true and fair view,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
_ financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error:

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the

‘parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern;, Qisdcsing, as applicable, matters related to

going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to-

liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements }

" Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement- when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and -are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to mﬂuence the -
economic demswns of users taken on the basis of these fi nanmal statements. - ‘

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
FRC's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's
report.” :

Report on othcr legal and regulatory requirements
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
" In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

«. the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for
' which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

e the strategic report and the dlrectors report have been prepared in accordance with
" applicable legal requirements. »

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not ldentlf ed any material mlsstatements'
in the strateglc report or the directors’ report.

UK RENEWABLE HOLDCO 1 LIMITED 14
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF UK RENEWABLE HOLDCO 1 LIMITED (continued)

Matters on which we are required to ;epén by exception

4

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to réport in respect of the following matters if, in our

Bpinion: ' '

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

. the parent.company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records
and returns; or ' '

 certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
« we have not received all the information and explanationé we require for our audit.
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, .as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for
this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

IS

Scott Bayné FCA (Sénior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor
Leeds,United Kingdom

IX/ September 2019 -
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| Cdnso_lid_ated Income Statement

for the year ended 31 Decémber 2018

~Year ended Year ended

A , 2018 _ 2017
ot . P =+ . .Notes - €'000 ~ €000
"~ Revenue - sale of electricity ‘ 1 179,658 175.609
Revenue - other - . 1. . 2,383 1,524
Cost of sales : , '(24,515) (24,278)
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets - (54,176) . (53,741)
Gross profit _ _ ' - .103,350 - 99,114
Staff costs : ' 4 ' (3,646) (3.541)
Other operating expenses : . : ' (6,471) (9,096)
Operating profit . ' i 93,233 86,477
Finance costs . ' 2 (58,097) (61,442)
Investment income 2 27 392
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 3 35,163 25,427
Tax on-profit on ordinary activities . _ 5 (12,829) (12,112)
Profit for the financial year / period ‘ 22,334 13,315
Attributable to owners of the company . - 21,717 11,803
Attributable to non-controlling interests 4 ' 617 1,612

' ‘ : 22,334 ‘ 13,315

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2018

Year ended Year ended
2018 2017
€'000 : €000
Profit for the‘ﬂnancial year / period ‘ . 22,334 © 13,315 .
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss: - .
Cash flow hedges - movement during the year / perlod (note 18) 14,219 24,875
. Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income ' (3,519) (6,156)
(note 5)
33034 32,034
Attributable to owners of the compahy _ - 32,417 _ 30,522
Attributable to non-controliing interests 617 1,512
_ ' 33,034 32,034

The above results arise from continuing operations. The accompanylng notes are an integral part of
both the consolidated statement of i income and comprehensive income.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

as at 31 December 2018

) 2018 2017
Notes . €000 €000
Non-current assets
1 oo e S00AWIll s et e . 7 77,468 : - 77,468
Other Intangible assets ) 8 411,468 © 431,217
Property, plant and equipment ’ S . 9 598,082 627,844
Deferred tax asset i So2r 21,307 25,144
: ’ 1,108,326 1,161,673
Current assets : . . . C
Trade and other receivables . ’ 1 . 41,564 ) 34,248
Cash and cash equivalents ’ . 7819 9,513
’ : 49,383 43,761
Total assets : A T 1457708 1.205.434
Current liabilities , o
Trade and other payables . 13 (15,839) (16,192)
Corporation tax . . (2,781) (3,295)
Borrowings - . 14 (64,123) (72,189)
Derivative financial liabilities : 18 (9,148) {9,882)
) . Co i (91,891) (101,558)
Net current fiabilities , : ’ (42,508) (57,797
Non-=current liabilities A A '
Borrowings . I 14 © . (429,815) (482,469)
Trade and other payables } ' 13 (12,418) (11,910)
Due to group companies ) 12 (250,000) (250,700)
Derlvative financial liabilities . 18 (61,805) (75,463)
Deferred tax . . . : 21 (147,964) - (151,527)
Provisions 15 (3,200) (3,000)
: ’ -(905,200) (975,069)
Total fabilitles ' ' (97,09 (1,076,627)
-_Net asséts ' 160,617 128,807
Equity .
Called up share capital . 16 e -
Share-premium account o 16 . 78,500 78,500
Hedging reserve . . : ) 41,161 30,461
Retained earnings . 30,639 . 8,922
Equity attributable to owners of the company . : 150,300 - 117,883
Non-controlling interest ' ' 17 10,317 - '10,'924
Total equity e ‘ ; ' 160,617 128,807

The accoinpanyihg notes are an ihtegrai part of this consol‘idated balance sheet.

The financial statements of UK Renewable HoldCo 1 Limited, Registered number 09775646, were
-approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for issue on n September 2019 and signed on its

behalf by:
M J Horsley %}?
Director . ‘

2 September 2019
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Cbnsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2018

Total

. 10,317

UK RENEWABLE HOLDCO 1 LIMITED 18

Notes Called up Share© Hedging Retained Non- Total
share premium reserve  earnings controlling equity
s s e ez capital- e ' interest
€'000 €'000 €000 €'000 €'000 €000 €000
At 31 December 2016 - 78,500 14,742 4,412 94,654 10,753 105407
Profit for the year - - - 11,803 11,803 1,512 © 13315 "
Other comprehensive income - - 18,719 v - 18,719 - . 18,719
Total con"nprehensive income - - 18,719 11,803 30,522 1 ,51 2 32,034
Dividends declared on equity share 6 - - - (7,293) (7,293) - (7,293)
Distribution ofproﬁté. - - . - - ' (1,341) (1,341)
At 31 December 2017 - 78,500 30,461 8922 - 117,883 10,924 128,807
" Profit for the year - - B SN A L 21,717 617 22,334
Other comprehensive iﬁcome - - 10,700 - 10,700 - 10,700 -
Total coinprehensive income . - 10700 21717 32417 617 33034
Dividends declared on equity share - 6 - - . - - - -
Distribution of profits - - ) - - - (1,224) (1,224)
At 31 December 2018 - 78,500 41,161 30,639 150,300 160,617



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2018

e e s A S Year ended Yearended * -
: : Notes 2018 2017
. . €000 €000
Operating activities ]
Received from customers 217,608 - 216,380
Payments to trade creditors - ’ : ) (29,727) (29,212)
Payments to employeés S : ‘ o (1892) - . (1,575).
"Payments ofincome tax - . - ' (17441) (22,496)
Other payments from operating aciiyitie's i ~ (44,078) (34,210)
Cash inflow from bpérating activiﬁes _ 20 124,670 128,887
' Investing activities . _
Receipts from tangible and intangible fixed assets - . T2 : 57
" Payments relating to tangible and intangible fixed assets ‘ g (6,365) _ (1'4f504)
Cash outﬁow from investing activities o (6,293) (14.447)
Financing activities 4
R_eceipts from borrowings . A : 3,000 B -
Interest receipts o 26 ’ 48
Repayment of borrowings A : - : (65,555) (61,827)
Interest payments » v (56.318) (58,968)
Dividends to shareholders . ‘ - ' (7,293)
' Payments to minority interests o o (1,224) o (1,341),
Cash out/inflow from financing activities ‘ ' (120,071) (129,381)
'Net decrease in cash and cash eguivalents : (1,694) : (14,941)
" Cash and cash equivalents at start of period ‘9,513 ‘ 24,454

- Cash and cash equivalents at end of period S 7819 9,513
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Accounting Policies

for year ended 31 December 2018

General information
.. —--UKR1 (the company) is a-company-incorporated in-the United Kingdom under the Companies Act.

The Company is a private company limited by shares and is registered in England and Wales The
address of the Company'’s registered office is 3 More London Riverside, London, SE1 2AQ. The

. principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the group) and the nature of the group's
operations are set out in the strategic report on page 2.

The .functional currency is considered to be Euros because that is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the group operates. The consolidated financial statements are also
presented in Euros. Foreign operations are included in accordance with the provisions set on
pages 21-22 (see basis of consolidation accounting policy).

Basis of accounting

'The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs). The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with IFRSs
adopted by the European Union and therefore the group financial statements comply with Article 4
of the EU IAS Regulation. : ' '

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the -

. fair value of an asset or a liability, the group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or

~liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when 'pricing the asset
or liability- at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
paymen{ transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of IAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisabie value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36. '

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
" 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and

the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
_ follows: : o
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Accounting Policies (co'ntinued)

Basis of accounting (continued)
e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs . are inputs, other than quotedAprices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, and

¢ Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
All derivative financial instruments are classified as level 2, goodwm is classmed as level 3.
Ba5|s of consohdatlon

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the company and
entities controlled by the. company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31 December. Control is achleved
'when the Company: ‘

¢ has the power over the investee;
s exposed, or has rights, to variable return from its involvement with the investee; and
- has the ability io use its power to effect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and curcumstances mdlcate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it considers that it
has power over the investee when the voting rights are-sufficient to give it the practical ability to

~ direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally The company considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the company's voting nghts in an investee are suff‘ cient
to give it power, including:

» the size of the company's holding of veting rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders; '

e potential voting rights held by the company, other vote holdere or other parties:
e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the company has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including votlng ‘patterns at prevnous shareholders’ meetings.
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Accounting Policies (cbntinued)

" Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the company ‘obtains control over the subsidiary and’
ceases when the company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, the results of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the period are included in the consolidated income statement from
the date the company gains control until the ‘date when the company ceases to control the
subsidiary. E ‘

Profit or loss and each component of other cdmprehensive ihcome are attributed to the owners of -
the company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of the subsidiaries is

\attributed to the owners of the company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in-the

non-controliing - interests having a deficit balance. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with the group's
accounting policies. All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between the members of the group are eliminated on consolidation. '

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the group’s equity therein.
Those interests of non-controlling shareholders that are present ownership interests entitling their -
holders to a proportionate share of net assets upon liquidation may initially be measured at fair value -
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Other non-
controlling interests are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying
amount of non-contfolling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-!

- controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is

attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. '

‘Changes in the group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are accounted

for as equity transactions. The carrying amount of the group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests aré adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-gontrolling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of
the company. ' '

When the group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on disposal recognised in profit or loss
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration

" received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), less liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All

amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by

’applic_able IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date

when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under |AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, when applicable, the costs on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joirit venture. .
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Accountmg PO|ICIeS (contmued)

Going concern

The group is able to pay its liabilities as they fall due, due to the reliability of regulated revenue. The
~group is in a current liability_position_of €45.5m.due.to short-term borrowings of €64.1m (see note
14). The directors believe that they have adequate liquidity resources to pay its debts as they fall
due. The directors have made enquiries and reviewed the forecasts, including sensitivity analysis
and have a reasonable expeéctation that the company and group have adequate resources to
continue in operatlonal existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the Annual Report and Financial Statements. '

Business combinations

-Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration trénsferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acqu|smon -date fair value of assets transferred by the group, liabilities incurred by the
group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equ1ty interest issued by the group in exchange -
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognlsed in the profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date, except that:

o deferred tax assets of liabilities and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
" arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance. with IAS 12 lh'qome Taxes and |IAS
19 Employee Benefits respectively; and :

o assets (or disposai groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operatlons are measured in accordance with that
Standard '

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity
interest in the acq'uiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration

_transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognlsed immediately in
the profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

When the consideration transferred by the group in a business combination includes an asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustmehts are adjustments that arise from additional
information being obtained d'uring the ‘measurement period’' (which cannot exceed one year from the -
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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Accounting Policies (continued)

_ Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not

____qualify as measurement period_adjustments._.depends on how the’ contingent consideration is
classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent

reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within eqdity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured  at subsequent reporting dates

" at fair value with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

- When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously-held interests in the

acquired entity is remeasured to its acquisition date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss, where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomblete by the-end of the reporting period in -
which the combination occurs, the group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period
(see above), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have
affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

" Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised and measured as set out above. Goodwill is not amortised but is
reviewed for impairment at least annually. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the group's cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
imp_airment loss is allocated first to reduce-the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period. On
disposal of a cash-generating unit, the attributable "amount of goodwill is included in the '
determination of the profit or Ioss on disposal. ‘ ' :

Revenue recoghnition

Income from sales is recognised in the income statement at the time the performance obligations
occur. The moment of recognition of perfdrmanoe obligations occurs at a specific time, which does
not differ from the practice previously adopted under IAS 18. There are no other significant
performance obligations to be complied with later on. The revenue from the provision of services is
recognised in the income statement with reference .to the stage of completion of the services
provided at the Balance Sheet date. Revenue from dividends is recognised when ‘entitlement to
receive such is issued. '

" UK RENEWABLE HOLDCO 1 LIMITED 24



- Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest receivable is recognised in accordance with the principle of accrual accounting, taking into
account the amount outstanding and effective rate over the period to maturity. Costs and income are
__recorded in accordance with_the principle_of accrual accounting, i.e. costs and income are
recognised as they arise, regardless of when they are received or paid. Costs and income for the
current year for which eéxpenditure and revenue will occur in future periods, as well as expenses and
~ revenues already occurred that relate to future periods shall be imputed to income for each period in
that corresponding value. The difference is recorded in Debtors and other current assets and
Creditors and other current liabilities.

~ Leases

‘Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-line basis over the term
* of the relevant lease except where another more systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the lease. asset are .consumed. Contingent rentalsarising
'under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are
récognised as a liability. The aggregate béneﬁt of incentives are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis over the'lease term, except where another systematic. basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Assets held under finance leases and other similar contracts, which confer rights and obligations
similar to those attached to owned assets, are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and their useful economic lives. The capital elements of future
" lease obligations are recorded as liabilities, while the interest elements are charged to the profit and
loss account over the period of the leases to produce a constant rate of charge on the balance of
capital repayments outstanding. Hire purchase transactions are dealt with similarly, except that
assets are depreciated over their useful economic lives '

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Al other borrowing cbsts are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Accounting Policies (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the group will comply
with ,the conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognlsed in prof t or Ioss on a systematic ba5|s over the periods in which
the group recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in
the consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets. '

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or |osses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the group with no future related costs are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
. Ty, ‘

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
A CUrrent tax

The tax currently payable is ba_sed on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from net
profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. '

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expécted to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
. the computation of taxable profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
~ which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or-from the initial

recognition (other than in a busmess combination) of other assets and Iuabmtres ina transactlon that -

affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recogriised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future
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Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation (continued) |

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and,reduqed'to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
...part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax is caiculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled, or the asset is realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deférred tax is charged or credited in the income statement,
except when it relates to items.charged or credited in other comprehensive income, in which case
the deferred tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income. ‘

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off burrent
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current tax and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,- in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are recorded at acquisition cost net of depreciation and impairment losses.
The acquisition cost includes all expenditure directly attributable to the acquisition of the goods and
their being made available at the .indicated site and under the required’ operating conditions. The
subsequent costs are included in the book value of the asset or recognised as separate assets, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that the group will obtain future economic benefits and the cost
of the asset can be reliably measured. All expenditure on repairs and maintenance are recognised
as a cost in the period in which they are incurred. Tangible fixed assets in‘prog'ress refer to fixed
. assets still undergoing construction, and these are registered at acquisition cost net any impairment
losses, and they are depreciated from the time when the investment projects are operationally ready.
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Accounting Policies (continued)
Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the deemed. cost or acquisition cost using the straight-line method,
according to the following periods of expected useful life of the assets:

. Useful life (years)
Land ' n/a
Buildings ' : : - 28
Equipment ) R
General equipment 8 and 28
Transport equipment 4t05
Tools and utensils 5to8

Office equipment . 3to 8

" The residual values of assets and their useful lives are reviewed and adjusted; if necessary, on the
balance sheet date. Gains or losses arising from the write-off or sale are determined by the
difference between the proceeds received on disposals and the asset's’ book value and are
recognised in the income statement as other income or other operating expenses.

. Inténgible assets acquired separately -

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired sepérately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation- and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a
sfraight—line basis over their estimated useful lives, being 28 years for licences, 3 years for software
and between 1 and 28 years for land rights. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. '

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised éeparately from goodwill are
initially recognised. at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as théir cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately. ‘

Impaiiment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet daté, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and i‘ntahgible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment

- loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the .asset does not -generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be

i
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- Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets 'excluding goodwill (continued)

identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent

_____allocation basis can be_identified. An_intangible_asset with an indefinite useful life is tested for

impairment at least annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessrrients of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Intangible (assets under construction)

The group recognise an intangible asset (asset under construction which relates to a wind energy
tariff scheme for the period after the expiry of guaranteed remuneration). The group is obliged under
the Decree-Law which permits its operations to be remunerated for an additional period-of 7 years.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying ‘amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease. '

Where an impairment loss subsequéntly reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A .
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
‘carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase. ' '

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the group’s balance sheet when the group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially méasured. at fair value. Transaction costs that are
‘ directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair

- value through profit or loss are recognised immédiately in profit or loss.
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Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

If the transaction.price differs from fair value at initial recdgnition, the group will account for such
differences as follows: if fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical
-asset or-liability or-based-on-a-valuation-technique-that-uses only data from observable markets; - -

then the difference is recognlsed as a gain or loss on lnmal recogmtcon (i.e. day 1 profit or Ioss)

e in all other cases, the fair value will be adjusted to bring it in line with the transaction price
(i.e. day 1 profit or loss will be deferred by including it in the initial carrying amount of the
asset or liability).

After initial recognition, the deferred gain or loss will be released to profit or loss such that it reaches
a value of zero at the time when the entire contract can bé valued uéing active market quotes or
verifiable objective market information. Depending on the typé of financial instrument, the group can
adopt one of the following policies for.the amortisation of day 1 gain or loss:

s calibrate unobservable inputs to-the transaction price and recognise the deferred gain or
loss as the best estlmates of those unobservable inputs change based on observable
information; or

« release the day 1 gain or loss in a reasonable fashion based on the facts and circumstances
{i.e. uéing either straight-lin,e or non-linear amortisation).

Financial assets

All financial assets are recdgni'sed and dereéognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of
a financial asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the
'tirheframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus '
_transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets classified as at fair value

through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. ' ‘

Financial assets are.classified into the following.speciﬁed‘.categories:v financial-assets ‘at fair value.
through profit or loss’ (FVTPL), ‘held-to-maturity’ investments, ‘available-for-sale’ (AFS) financial
assets and ‘loans and receivables’, The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
ﬁnancral assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

~ Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank.

Effective interesi method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paud or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premlums or discounts)
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Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)'

through the. expected Irfe of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter perrod to the net
carrymg amount on initial recognition. )

“Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt mstruments other than those financial

assets classified as at FVTPL
Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and.receivables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairrnent. Interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when
the recoghition of interest would be immaterial. The allowance for expected credit losses
assessment requires a degree of estimation'an_d judgement. It is based on the lifetime expected
credit loss, grouped based on days overdue, and makes assumptions to allocate an overall expected
credit loss rate for each group. These assumptions include recent contract performance and
historical collection rates.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each
balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a resuit
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the investment have been affected.

For listed and unlisted equity investments classified as AFS, asignificant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the security below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment. .

For all other financial assets, including redeemable notes classified as AFS and finance lease
receivables, objective evidence of impairment could include:

¢ slgnificant financial difficuity of the issuer. or counterparty; or
o default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain cate‘gories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually -are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 60 days, as well as observable changes in’ natlonat or local economic
condrtrons that correlate with default.on receivables.
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Accounting Policiés (continued)

' Financiallinstruments (continued)

For ﬁnahcial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,

~.discounted at the financial asset's.original.effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

With the exception of AFS equity i'nstruments if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the.
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through prof it
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the |mpa|rment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recogmsed :

In respect of AFS equity securities,' impairment losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not

reversed. through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value‘subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investments

revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt securities, impairment losses are subsequently reversed

through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss. v

Reclassification of financial essets :

The group has reclassified certain non-derivative financial assets out of held for trading (part of the
FVTPL category) to AFS financial assets. Reclassification is only permitted in rare circumstances
and where the asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling in the short-term. in all cases',
reclassifications.of financial assets are limited to debt instruments. Reclassifications are accounted

" for at the fair value of the financial asset at the date of reclassification.

Derecognition of financial assets

The group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially ail the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the- group neither transfers nor retains substantially: all the
risks and rewards. of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the group recognises
its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
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Accounting Policies (continued)
Fina'n.cial instruments (continued)

group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognlses a collateralised borrowing for -
the proceeds received.

amount and the sum of the conS|derat|on recelved and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
.that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised
in profit or loss.

. On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the group retains an option
to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the group allocates the ‘previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part
it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the
transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any
cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in 4prof t or loss. A cumulative - gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognlsed and the part
that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as -either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Equity insfruménts ‘

An equity instrument- is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equ:ty instruments issued by the group are recognlsed at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchasé of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL' or ‘othef financial liabilities'.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration that may
be paid by an acquirer as part of a business combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if: ' ' :

. such designation eliminates or significantly -reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

UK RENEWABLE HOLDCO 1.LIMITED 33 ’
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Financial instruments (continued)

. the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performa‘nce is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with

.. the group's documented_risk.management.or. investment strategy, and information about the -
grouping is provided internally on that basis; or '

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and |AS 39 Financial '
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilites at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses "arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’
line item in the income statement. Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 18.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, mcludmg borrowings, are |n|t|a||y measured at fair value, net of transaction
costs. :

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using’the effective interest

method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and
of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the fi nanc:al Ilablhty
or, where appropnate a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

" The group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the group’s obligations are

discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

When the group exchanges with the existing lender one debt instrument into another one with the
substantially different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the orlgmal
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial Ilab|l|ty Similarly, the group accounts for
substantial modification of terms of an existing liability or part of it as_an extinguishment of the -
original financial liability and the recognition of a new liability. It is assumed that the terms are
substantial'ly different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the original effective rate is at
least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the
original financial liability. o : ‘
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Financial instruments (continued)
berivative financial instruments

The group enters into a varlety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest

rate and forelgn exchange rate risk, mcludmg forelgn exchange forward contracts, interest rate

swaps and cross currency swaps. -

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and
" are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or

loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a
hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship. The group designates certain derivatives as either hedges of the
fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedges), hedges of highly
probable forecast transactions or hedges of foreign currency risk of firm commitments (cash flow
hedges), or hedges'of net investments in foreign operations.

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a
negative fair value is recognised as a financial liability. A derivative is presented as a non-current
asset or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more than 12 months and
it is not expected to be realised or settled within 12 months. Other derivatives are presented as
current assets or current liabilities.

Hedge accounting

The groUp designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives, embedded derivatives
and non-derivatives .in respect of foreign currency risk, as either fair value hedges, cash flow
hedges, or hedges of net investments in foreign operations. Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm
commitments are accounted for as cash flow hedges. ‘

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between the hedging
instrument and the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for
undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an
ongoing basis, the group documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as ’
cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss.relating to the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss, and is included in the ‘other gains and
losses’ line item. Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit
or loss, in the same line of the income statement as the recognised hedged item: However, when the
forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-
financial liability, the gains and losses previously accumulated in equity are transferred from equity
and iricluded in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability.
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Financial instruments (continued)

.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hédge accounting.

....ANY_gain or loss._recognised. in.other.comprehensive. income at that. time .is. accumulated in equity
and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equny is -
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are reccgnised when the group has-a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probabte that the group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable

~ estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the

- best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date;

" taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrcunding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). When
some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received, and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

New standards, interpretations, amendments and reviews that came into force in the period

The following standards which have been endorsed by the European Umon have been adopted for
the first time in 2018. No sngmf cant impact was incurred as a consequence

Standard / Interpretatlon ' . _ Application date (a)
IFRS 9 - Fmancnal mstruments ‘ 01/01/2018
IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers ' 01/01/2018
Clarifications on IFRS 15 B . 01/01/2018
Amendments to IFRS 4: Application of IFRS 9, Financial instruments, with IFRS 4, 01/01/2018

Insurance contracts

Sh::::ndments to IFRS 2: Classification and measurement of payment transachons in ‘ 01/01/2018
Improvements to international financial repomng standards (2014-2016 cycle) 01-01/2018 (b)
IFRIC 22 - Transactions in foreign currency including advances for purchase of assets © -01/01/2018 '
Amendment to IAS 40 - Transfer of investment property '01/01/2018

(a) applicable in the European Union for ﬁnanciat’ periods beginning on.or after
(b) with the exception of IFRS 12, which is applicable on 01-01-2017
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Accounting Policies (continUed)

New standards, lnterpretatlons, amendments and revnews commg into force in the future
(continued)

No significant impacts were recorded in the Grbdp's “financial statements for the year ended
December.31,.2018,.as.a.result.of-the.adoption.of .the .standards, interpretations, amendments-and
revisions referred to above. Particularly those of IFRS 9 and 15, as summarised below:

(i) IFRS 9 - Financial instruments

On January 1, 2018 the Group édopted the new IFRS .9 standard that replaces IAS 39. As regards

~ the transition from IAS 39 to IFRS g, the Group applled the simplified model, whlch means that the

Group did not apply IFRS 9 retrospectlvely

Management assessed the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9 on the Financial Stateme'n'ts, based on
the analysis of the Group's financial assets and liabilities, as follows:

'

Classification and measurement

- IFRS 9 introduced a model for the classification of financial assets based on the business model of

managing financial assets (business model test) and the contractual charactenstics of cash flow
(SPPI test).

The application of IFRS 9 did not change the fair value or classification of financial instruments. '

The measurement and classification of all financial instruments is unchanged from what was

- previously applied by means of IAS 39. Accordingly, the accounts receivable, accounts payable and
‘loans granted and obtained, continue to be measured at amortised cost. ‘

Impairment .

A new method was introduced for the calculation and reporting of other impafrment.losses of other
accounts receivable, changing the “incurred loss" method to the "expected credit loss" (ECL) model,
where the measurement of credit risk is considered ‘on initial recognition. Management has
concluded that the application of IFRS 9 has no material impact-on the Group s financial position and
performance.

(ii) IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers
On January 1, 2018 the Group adopted the new IFRS 15 standard that replaces' IAS 18.

Revenue is related to the sale of electricity‘ptoduced by the wind farms owned and also interest,
when this occurs or when the Group has the right to them, or has corﬁplied with the obligations. The
moment of recognition of performance obligations occurs at a specific time, which does not differ
from the practice previously adopted under IAS -18. There are no other significant ‘performance
obligations to be complied with later on. Management has concluded that the application of IFRS 15

. has no material impact on the Group's ﬁnanpial posigion and performance.
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Accounting Polieies (Cdntinued) A

New standards, mterpretatlons amendments and reviews comlng mto force in the future
(contmued)

The following standards will be adopted within future perlods

Standard/ lnterpretatlor g Application date (a)
IFRS 16 - Leases ) 01/01/2019
Amendments to IRFS 9 - prepayment characteristics with negative compensation 01/01/2019
IFRIC 23 - Uncertainties in the treatment of income tax - 01/01/2019

(a) applicable in the European Union for financial periods beginning on or after

Although these. standards are endorsed by the European Union, they were not adopted by the
Company in 2018 because their application is not yet mandatory. As a result of the application of the
abovementioned standards, we do not at present consider-any significant |mpact on the Company's
financial statements. :

IFRS 16 Leases will reblace existing accounting requirements for leases under |1AS 17 Leases.
Under current requirements, leases are classified based on their nature as either finance leases,
which are recognised on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, or operating leases,
which are not recognised on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. Under IFRS 16
Leases, the Consolidated Entity's accounting for operating leases as a lessee will result in the
recdgnition of a right-of-use (ROU) asset and an associated lease liability on the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position. The lease liability represents the present value of future lease
payments, with the exception of short-term and low value leases. An .interest expense will be .
recognised on the lease liabilities and a depreciation charge will be recognised for the ROU assets.
There will also be addmonal disclosure requirements under the new standard '

The Consolidated Entlty will initially apply IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, using the modified
retrospective transition approach and will not restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first
transition. When applying the modified retrospective approach to leases previ'ously classified as
operating leases under IAS 17, the Consolidated Entity can elect, on a ‘lease-by-lease basis,
whether to apply a number of practical expedients on transition. The Consolidated Entity is
assessmg the potential impact of using these practical expedients.

 After analysis by the Group, the estimated impacts of the adoptlon of this accountlng standard wnth
effects from December 31, 2018, are as follows:

€000s

Assets ) - 26,629
Right of use 30,477
Intangible assets ' (1,403)
Lease assets (3,027)
Deferred tax assets 582
Liabilities 28,399
Lease liabilities . 28,399
Capital - (1,770)
Reseives ‘ {1,770)
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Accounting Policies (continued)

" New standards, mterpretatlons, .amendments and reviews coming into force in the future
(continued) :

IFRS 9 - Financial instruments does not have any significant impact either in terms of the
N A,_&Jﬂjassrfcatron of financial.assets .and_liabilities . or .the implementation of the impairment model’
‘ - established in this standard.

@

Standards, mterpretatlons, amendments and reviews not yet endorsed by ‘the European .
Union

The following standards with mandatory adoption in the future have not been endorsed by the
European Union, and so have not been applied within these accounts. They will not have a
significant impact if endorsed.

Standard / Interpretation ) ’ " Application date (a) -
IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts ’ : : - 01/01/2021
Improvements to international financial reporting. slandards (201 5-2017 cycle)

IFRS 3 - Concentration of business activities: require remeasurement of interests

previously held when an entity obtains control over an investee over which it previously had : 01/61/201'9
joint control;
IFRS 11 - Joint ventures: clarifies that there should be no remeasurement of interests 01/01/2019

previously heid when an entity obtains joint control over a joint operation;

IAS 12 - Income Tax: cIariﬁes that all tax consequences of dividends must be recorded in 01 101'/2019
profit or loss, regardiess of how the tax arises;

IAS 23 - Borrowing costs: clarifies that the part of the loan directly related to the
acquisition/construction of an asset, outstanding after the corresponding asset has become 01/01/2019
ready for the intended use, is considered an integral part of the entity's general financing, .
for the purpose of determining the capit_alisation‘rate.

Amendment to IAS 28: Long-term investments in associates and joint agreements : 01/01/2019
Amendments to IAS 19: Change in Plan, Restriction or Settiement . 01/01/2019
Amendmenis to references to'the Framework in IFRS - " 01/01/2020
Ameéndment to IFRS 3 - Business definition ) - 01/01/2020
" *Amendment to IAS'1 and 1AS 8- Material definition e B} . 01/01/2020

(a) applicable in the European Union for financial periods beginning on or after
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Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of
Estimation Uncertamty

for the year ended 31 December 2018

In the application of the group’s accounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements,

estimates and assumptlons about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily -
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
) estlmates

’ The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and, future periods. :

Critical judgements in applying the group’s -accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (which are dealt
with separately below), that the directors have made in the process ‘of applying the group's
accbunting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in financial
statements. '

Dilapidatioh pi'ovision .

The management estimates that the liabilities which may arise.from the obligation to dismantie wind
" farms at the end of their useful life will be offset by the residual value of the equipment, which is why
it has not considered any residual value for the equ1pment or made any provision for
decommissioning based on histofical expenence

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Fair value of derivative financial instrumeﬁts
" The fair value is based on market prices set by external "pa‘rt'ies‘ 'who useé generally dccepted future

cash flow discount techniques, refer to note 18 for -explanation of the methodology used, significant
judgements and sensitivity analysis. : '
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Notes to the Financial Stateménts

1 " Revenue

. The group’s turnover is generated from continuing operations, wholly from within Portugal. Over 99%
of turnover comes from the sale of electricity generated from windfarms and therefore it is deémed to
have one operating segment. Other turnover comes predominantly from government grants,

- e e nemeeeODY@INEA N relation to wind.farm.activities-described. within the strategic report on page 2. '

- Year ended - Year ended

2018 2017
€000 €'000
Turnover — sale of electricity. < 179,658 175,609
Turnover - other : 2,383 1,524
. 182,041 177,133
2 Finance costs
Year ended Year ended
2018 2017 -
: €000 €'000
" Finance costs . . c
Bank and bond loans _ C ‘ 14,429 15,444
Interest expense on financial instruments 22,599 25,048
“Shareholder loans , s 20,329 20,157
Bank charges ' 740 793
: : ‘ 58,097 61,442

Investment income . A
Interest on financial investments _ (27) ' (48)

Gains on derivatives (see note 18) - (344)
' @7n (392)
Net finance costs . - - 58,070 61,050 .
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" Profit for the oeriod has been.arrived.at.after.

Notes to the Fmanc1al Statements (contmued)

. 3 Profrt on ordmary actlvrtles before taxation

charging/(crediting) ‘
Proﬁt/(loss) on sale of property,_plan_t and equi:pment
Lease operatlng costs — land and bwldmgs o
Depreciation of. property plant and equlpment
Amortlsatlon of other mtanglble assets _'
Staff costs (note 4)
Fees payable to the auditor '

Audit of company and consolidation

Audit of subsidiary compames ,
Total audit fees

Other assurance services (and total of non-audit fees) -

T otal fees

. 4 Staff costs

Wages and salaries
" Social security costs

Other employee costs

The average monthly number of employee mcludmg
directors was: .

" Directors

Employees

Total

as detailed below:

Emoluments

. Year ended

Year ended
2018 2017
€000 €'000
166 (353)
1,952 2,030
30,340 29,950
23,837 23,790
3,646 3,541
12 19
65 64
77 83
45 2
122 - 85
Year ended Year ended
2018 2017 .
€'000 €'000
2,913 2,795
‘646 .639
87 107
3,646 - 3,541
| Number - Number
8 .8 :
58 59
66 67

871

‘Only one of the dlrectors is remunerated through the group, bemg therefore the highest pald director

877

There have beAenv no transactions with the directors other than remdne'_ration: The other directors are
remunerated through other group companies. It is not practical to allocate costs to this company.
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Notes to the Fmancnal Statements (contmued)

5 Tax on proflt on ordlnary activities
, ‘ . Year ended Year ended
The tax charge comprises; - ' ' - 2018 2017
' ' ‘ - ' €000 €'000 .
- COrporation tax. ... N : . e
Current period- T 16,709 15,716
Adjustment in respect of prior periods - o (636) (136)
' - : 16,073 15,580
Deferred tax ,
Current period - origination and reversal of tlmlng ' .(3,244) (3,468)
differences . :
Total tax on profit on ordinary activities . 12,829 12,112

The differenice between the total tax shown and the amount calculated by applying the standard rate

of local tax to the profit before tax is as follows:

‘Year ended Year ended‘
2018 2017
€'000 €000
‘Group profit on ordinary activities before tax ' ) S 35,163 25,427
. Tax on profits at the expected rate within Portugal (25.5%) ’ 8,967 6,484
Effects of: _ ‘ .
Expenses not deductible for.tax purposes o " 4,358 5,734
Differences in tax rates ' R (496) . (106).
Group total tax charge for the period S " 12,829 12,112 _

The .group earns its profits in Portugal and so the standard rate of tax within Portugal is applied
(25.5%). In addition to the amount charged to the income statement, a tax charge of €3,519,000
(2017 - €6,516 000) has been recogniséd in other comprehensive income in relation to cash flow

hedge movements.

6 Dividends
" Year ended
2018
€000
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the
period:
interim dividend paid of €n|I (2017 - €1,823 188) per
ordinary share

Year ended
2017 .
€'000

7,293

There was no interim dividend (2017 - declared 25 January).
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Nofés to the Financial Statements (continued)

7 Goodwill A ,
2018 : 2017
€'000 €000
Cost and carrying amount:
e u—ﬂGoodwnI -as at 31-December2017-and-31-December 2018 . " 77,468 77,468

The group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that
goodwill might be impaired. No impairment has been needed in the period. Goodwill arose following
the acquisition of 100% of the issued share capital of Iberwind, SA in the prior period. The following
table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired, - the fair value of total
consideration and the resulting intangible assets and goodwill. - .

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating units
(CGUSs) or group of units that are expected to benefit from that business combination. There are 37
individual CGU’s being each of the separate windfarms. The. group tests goodwill annually for
impairment, or more frequently if there are-indications that goodwill might be impaired. The .
recoverable amounts of the CGU are determined from value in use calculations.

The value in use calculation requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. The
carrying amount of goodwill at the balance sheet date was €77.5million. In making this estimation
the following. assumptaons have been made: '

.e Adiscount rate of 5.61% (2017 — 6.41%) has been applied, being the weighted average cost
of capital applicable to the group; and

e Ithas been assumed that cash generation is consistent with that'of the past period, subject
to known future tariff variances. -

Due to the sngnlfcant headroom in carrying value no sensmvnty is deemed necessary by the
~ directors.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8 .  Other intangible assets
€'000 €000 €000 | €000 €000
Software Licenées . Land  Assets under Total
s msm——— tariff-- - rights ~ construction
-Cost , .
At 1 January 2017 434 459,885 1,389 15,890 477,598
* Additions’ 58 - - 4,379 4,437
Write offs - - (48) (48)
At 31 December 2017 492 459,885 1,389 20,221 481,987
Additions 78 - 50 4,113 4,241
Disposals : (248) - - (153) (401)
At 31 December 2018 322 459,885 1,439 24,181 485,827
Amortisation g : _ .
At 1 January 2017 (359)  (26,611) (10) - (26,980)
Charge in period (32) (23,747) (11) - (23,790)
‘At 31 December 2017 (391) (50,358) (21) - (50,770)
Charge in period (74) (23,748) (15) - (23,837)
Disposals 248 o - - 248
At 31 December 2018 (217) (74,106) (36) - (74,359)
Carrying amount - ' :
At 1 January 2017 75 433,274 1,379 - 15,890 450,618
At 31 December 2017 101 409,527 1,368 20,221 431,217
At 31 December 2018 105 1,403 24,181 411,468 -

385,779

Licence tariff

Corresponds to 'the value attributed to the licences held by the group and the 'guaranteed tariff it
- holds for the sale of the electncuty produced. There is sufficient headroom and therefore no risk of

impairment.

Assets under construction

Relates to.a wind energy tariff scheme for the' period after the expiry of guaranteed remuneration.
The ‘group is obligéd under the Decree-Law which permlts its operations to be remunerated for an

additional period of 7 years.

Land rights

Relate to a license which allows the group access to private land and the right to operatlng

wnndfarms
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

‘9 Prdperty, plant and equipment
€000 €000 €000 €'000 €000
Land Buildings Equipment Asseté Total
- - - : ~ under -
) :construction
Cost ' . .
At 1 January 2017 132 292 . 1,253,245 1,888 1,255,557
Additions : 335 1,006 . 1,740 6,368 9,449
. Disposals . - -- (9,914) - (9,914)
Transfers - - 8,187 (8,j87) -
At 31 December 2017“ : ' 467 1,298 1,253,258 69 1,255,092
" Additions ' : - 468 - . 468
Disposals : : o - - (2,130) - (2,130)
Adjustments . - 69 ] (69) ] -
At 31 December 2018 . 536 1,298 1,251,596 - 1,253,430
- Depreciation : o : ' A
At 1 January 2017 = - - (197) (606,605) - -(606,802)
Charge in period - (90) (29,860) - (29,950)
Disposals . : - .~ (35) . 9,504 - 9,504
At 31 December 2017 : (287)  (626,961) T (627,248)
Charge in period - (64) (30,276) - (30,340)
Disposals - _ , - “= . 2,205 - 2,205
At'31 December 2018 . - (316) ' (655,032) - (655,348)
Net book value v R
At 1 January 2017 : 132 95 646,640 1,888 648,755
At 31 December 2017 L - 467 1,011 626,297 69 627,844
At 31 December 2018 y 536 982 596,564 -

598,082 -

~ Adjustments in 2018 relate to zero net value assets that were no longer being used by the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

10 Subsidiaries
The group consists of a parent company, UK Renewable HoldCo 1 Limited, incorporated in the UK
and a number of subsidiaries held directly and indirectly by UK Renewable HoldCo 1 Limited.

The immediate subsidiary of UK Renewable HoldCo 1 Limited, is UK Renewable HoldCo 2 Limited,

“tR& immediate subsidiary of which is UK Renewable HoldCo 3 Limited. Both of these cCompanies are

-incorporated in the UK, are 100% owned by UK Renewable HoldCo 1 lelted and have a reglstered
address of 3 More London Riverside, London, SE1 2AQ. :

The subsidiaries of UK Renewable HoldCo 3 Limited operate in Portugal. Note 25 to the company's
separate financial statements lists details of all the subsidiaries.

1 Trade and other receivables '
’ 2018 2017
€000 €000
Receivable for the sale of jgoods ‘ . 18,692 12,169
Prepayments 11,488 8,059
Accrued income . . : 10,678 . 13,284
Other debtors _ : ’ 706 736 -
o 41,564 34,248

Trade and other receuvables disclosed above are classified as Ioans and recelvables and are
therefore measured at amortised cost.

Receivable for the sale of goods of €18,692 .(.)00 (2017 - €12,169,000) can be aged as follows: due
to terms within 90 days €18,692,000 — (2017 - €12,169, 000) and not due to terms €nil (2017 €n|l) :
No provns:on for doubtful debt is held at the balance sheet date ’

12~ Due to group companies _

’ - 2018 12017
€000 €000

Shareholder loans — u 250,000 250,700

Shareholder loans mature in 2035 and carry interest of 8.0% payable annually. The loans are held
with Well Diamond Development Limited (€125,000,000 and €125,350,000 at 31 December 2017)
and with Good Chain Investment Limited (€125,000,000 and €125, 350,000 at 31 December 2017)
being the two parent companies of UKR1. :
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Notes to the Fmancual Statements (contmued)

13 Trade and otherpayables .
2018 - 2017

‘ €'000 €'000

" Current liabilities . : . ' '

Trade creditors ’ ' i 2,343 3,780

ammct e AGCTUAIS @Nd deferred-income . — 7,141 8,546

Other taxes . 4 6,167 3,657

Other creditors ' 188 209

’ - 15,839 16,192
".. Non-current liabilities ) : : A :

Accruals and deferred income : ' 11,989 11,453

Other creditors . : 427 457

‘ 12,416 - 11,910

Total : . : : o 28,255 28,102

Trade creditors principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs.
© The di'rectorsAc()nsider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value.

14 Borrowings

2018 2017
. €000 €'000

Current liabilities ) ) ‘ . .
Bank loans . ‘ ’ 3,439 11,190
Syndicated loans ' o : . 60,684 60,999
- 64,123 72,189
Non-current liabilities _ . .
Bank loans ' 9,830 3,532
Syndicated loans : ' - 419,985 478,937
: ; : ' S 429,815 . - . 482,469
" Total ' 493,938 -~ 554,658

Bank loans -

Bank loans mature in 2019 and 2020 and aré repayable in half-yearly instalments, earning interest at
a rate tied to the 6-month Euribor rate plus a margin. They are recognised at amortised cost and no

~ material difference to the market value is considered to EXISt since they are loans that bear interest
at a rate tied to Euribor.

Syndicated loans E

The syndicated loans mature in 2025 and 2026 and are repayable between now and the point of
maturity. They are repayable in half yearly instalments bearing interest at a rate indexed to the 6-
month Euribor plus a margin. They are recognised at amortised cost and no material difference to
the market value is considéred to exist, since they are Ioans that bear interest at a rate tied to
Euribor.
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Notes to the Financial Stateménts (continued)

15 Provisions

€000
New provision established o o s . 200
Utilised in year - - -~ smmmmminin e : _ -
At 31 December 2017 : : 3,000

At 31 December 2018 ‘ : o ' ’ - 3,200

The provision relates to potential corporation tax payments in relation to 2014. The‘timing of the
utilisation is inherently uncertain although the directors expect that such utilisation WIlI occur mainly

‘beyond one year from the balance. sheet date.

16 Called up share capital and reserves ‘

Share capital and sham premium

Ve

2018 2017
' €'000 €'000
Allotted, called-up, authorised and
fully-paid shares:
4 ordinary shares of €1 . _ - - .
Share premium E S e 78,500 78,500

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income. Durihg the
period one ordinary share of €1 was issued for €78,500,000. Share premium of €78,499,999 was
created on issue of the one share, being the excess paid above the nominal value. .

. Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve represents the cumulative amount of. gains and losses on hedgmg mstruments
deemed effective in-cash flow hedges The cumulative deferred gain or loss on: the hedging

‘instrument is recognised in profit or loss only when the hedged transaction impacts the profit-or loss,

or is included as a basis adjustment to the non-financial hedged item, consistent with the applicable
accounting policy.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the accumulative earning ré_ta,ined by the group. .

-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17 Non-controlling interest

Non-controlling interests relate to the following group investments:

Company name

Shareholding

Contribution to total equity

2017

2018
oo 4 €000 €000
Monte Agrac;o-Energias Alternativas, Lda. 75.000% 3,549 3,827
ENTREVENTOS-Energias Renovaveis, S.A. 51.001% 6,768 7,097
10,924

10,317

The directors do not deem the non-contrdlling i‘nterests material to the group and as such the assets
and income statements of these subsidiaries have not been disclosed.

18 Derivatives and other financial instruments
. 2018 2017
Analysis of derivatives €'000 €000
Amounts due within one year:
Derivatives measured through the statement of income account: SWAPS (6,965) (9,123)
Derivatives that are designated and effective as hedge instruments: SWAPS (2,183) (759)
: (9,148) (9,882)
Amounts due after more than one year:
Derivatives measured through the statement of income accounts: SWAPS (61,805) (75,463) -
Derivatives that are designated and effective as hedge instruments: SWAPS - -
‘ . (61,805) (75,463)
Total _ (70,953) (85,345)
The fair value of derivates at 31 December 2018 and 2017 was the following:
Set Date Amount Market value
rate Effective Term Dec-2018 Dec-2017 ‘Dec-2018 Dec-2017
4.165% . 15 December 2006 15 August 2024 76,549,724 82,227,230 (9,894,096) (12,551,424)
4.165% 15 December 2006 15 August 2024 100,980,488 108,469,963 (13,036,505) (16,500,738)
4.165% 15 December 2006 15 August 2024 76,549,724 82,227,230 (9,978,201) (12,640,467)
4.165% . 15 December 2006 15 August 2024 71,663,572 76,978,683 (9,249,056) (14,766,064)
4.785% 09 August 2007 16 June 2025 6,484,349 6,851,968 (1,079,703) (1,334,778)
4.785% 09 August 2007 - 16 June 2025 7,872,256 6,851,968 - ° (1,251,481) (1,329,560)
4.785% 09 August 2007 16 June 2025 6,484,349 6,851,968 (1,088,466) (1,343,639)
4.785% 09 August 2007 16 June 2025 6,484,349 6,851,968 (1,080;284) (1,336,466)
4.430% 15 December 2009 15 June 2025 4,407,863 4,278,542 (1,600,998) (1,653,328)
4.430% 15 December 2009 15 June 2025 5,191,127 5,038,827 (1.891,661) (1,938,963)
4.430% 15 December 2009 15 June 2025 5,191,127 5,038,827 (1,801,902) (1,957,458)
- 8.430% 15 December 2009 15 June 2025 5,191,127 5,038,827 (1,880,332) {1,953,046)
4.000% 15 December 2009 15June 2025 - 38,200,939 40,778,720 (5,179,413) ' (6,376,044)
4.000% 15'December 2009 15 June 2025 38,200,939 40,778,720 - (5,218,424) (6,433,678)
4.000% 15 December 2009 15 June 2025 32,743,662 34,953,188 (4,441,107) (5,485,477)
1.620% " 15June 2018 15 December 2026 560,408 - ' - (299,351) -
1.500% . 15 June 2018 15 December 2026 1,632,792 - (436,472) -
1.476% . 15 June 2018 15 December 2026 1,499,207 - (383,538) _ -
1.457% 15 June 2018 15 December 2026 1,129,312 - '(265,808) -
1.080% 15 September 2015° 15 December 2026 15,806,863 15,806,863 (532,084) (508,081)
1.080% 15 September 2015 15 December 2026 7,903,431 7,903,431 (254,369) (236,055)
' 510,727,609 536,926,921 (70,953,251) {85,345,268)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
18 Derivatives and other fi_nancial instruments (continued)
Capital risk management '

The group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the group will be able to continue as going
concerns while maxrmrsrng the return to shareholders through the optrmrsatlon of the debt and equrty

balance. N

The capital structure of the group consists of net debt (borrowings disclosed in note 14 and note 12
after deducting cash and bank balances) and equity of the group (comprising issued capital,
reserves, retained earnings and non-controlling interests as disclosed in the balance sheet). The
group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Signiticant ;ac'counting policies

Details of the significant accounting bolicies and methods adopted (incIudihg the criteria for
recognition, the basis. of measurement and the bases for recognition of income and expenses) for
each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in the accountmg
policies. - :

Classification of financial instruments

2018 2017
€'000 €'000
Financial assets ‘ i
Cash o ) 7,819 9,513
Loans and receivables - ‘ ' 19,398 34,248
Financial liabilities : : _
Derivatives measured through the statement of income - (68,770) (84,586)
. Derivatives that are desugnated and effective as hedge mstruments (2,183) (759)
Loans and bonds =~ . - . (743,937) (554,658)
Trade payables o ' (40,184) (28,102)
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18 Derlvatnves and other flnancnal instruments (continued)

The group’s income, expense, gains and losses in respect of financial instruments are summarlsed
below:

nded .

ST e e , T : Year ended Year e
: 2018 2017
€000 €000
Interest income and expense on items at afnortised cost - o
Total interest payable on financial liabilities at amortised cost (35,564) - (36,394) -
Total interest receivable on financial assets at amortised cost . . _ 27 - 48
(35,537) - (36,346)
Interest income and expense on derlvatuves
Total interest payable on financial liabilities designated in an : 4
-effective hedging relationship . - (22,533) _(24,704)
(22,533) (24,704)
Fair value gains and losses
On financial liabilities measured at fair value through the .
statement of comprehensive income , _ ' (42) -
Total ' ] T _ (58,112) _____ (61,050)

Financial risk management objectives

Liquidity risk - ‘ ‘ _ .
‘The management of the liquidity risk implies maintaining cash and bank d‘eposits at sufficient levels,
ensuring the feasibility of the consolidation of floating debt through an adequate amount of credit
facilities and the ability to séttle market positions. The maturities of financial mstruments are
managed to ensure no concentration of renewal dates.

Cash-.flow and fair value risks associated with interest rates

The Qroup has no sighifiqant interest bearing assets but interest rate risk arises from long-term
loans. Loans issued at variable rates expose the group to cash flow risks associated with interest
rates. Loans issued at fixed rates expose it to fair value risk associated with mterest rates,

The group manages the cash flow risk associated with interest rates by transforming variable
interest rate swaps into fixed interest rates swaps. The interest rate swaps have the economic effect
of converting variable interest rate loans into loans at fixed interest rates. Generally, the group

contracts long-term loans at variable interest rates and performs swaps to transform them into fixed

interest rates, which are less than those contracted in fixed interest rates loans.
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18 Derivatives and other financial ihstrumehts (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty erI default on its’ contractual obligations resulttng in -

financial 10ss.” The ‘Consolidated Entity has adopted a policy of only dealmg wrth creditworthy
counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral where appropriate as a means of mltugatmg the risk
of financial loss from defaults. The Consolidated Entity's ‘exposure and the credit ratings of its
counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions contracted is
spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that
are reviewed and approved by the risk management committee annually.

The Consolidated Entity has adopted a lifetime expected loss allowance in estimating expected
credit losses to trade receivables through the use of a provisions matrix using fixed rates of credit
loss provisioning. These provisions are considered representative across all customers of the
'Consolidated Entity based on recent sates experience, historical collection rates and forward- Iookmg
information that is available.

General_ly, trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable eXpectation'of' recovery.
Indicators of this include the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan, no active
enforcement activity and a failure to make contractual payments for a period greater than 12 months.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers with 'ongoing credit evaluation performed
on their financial condition. Where appropriate, additional collatéral credit support is obtained to
. mitigate the risk of loss. ‘ ‘

The Consolidated Entity does not have significant credit risk expesur'e to any single counterparty. .
The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

’ The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the ﬁn'an‘cial statements, net of any allowance -
for losses, represents the consolidated entity's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
account of the value of any collateral obtained. ’

Impaired trade receivables

The Consolidated Entity applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets.  To
measure expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The contract assets relate to unbilled work
in progress and have substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the
same types of contracts. The Consolidated Entity therefore concluded that the expected loss rates
for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles over a perrod of 24 month before 31
December 2018 or 1 January 2018 respectively and the corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within this period. As there have been no credlt losses in that perrod no impairment is
necessary. :
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18 Denvatlves and other financial instruments (contlnued)

Sensmvnty analysns

The fair value of derivatives is based on market prices set-by .external parties who use generally
accepted future cash flow discount techniques. No judgement, other than to use the prices obtained

"~ ffom set external parties is ade. As such sensitivity analysis is not performed.

Value-at-risk (VaR) analysis

The VaR measure estimates the poten'tial loss in'pre-taxation profit over a given holding period for a
specified confidence level. The directors do not consider the methodology to be suited to the group,
adding no control over risk, and as such no VaR has been performed for the period.

Interest rate swap contracts

Under interest rate swap contracts, the group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and
floating rate interest amounts calculated on agreed notional principal amounts. Such contracts

‘enable the group to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on the fair value of issued fixed rate

debt held and the cash flow exposures on the issued variable rate debt held. The fair value of
interest rate swaps at the reporting date is determined by discounting the future cash flows using the
curves at the reporting date and the credit risk inherent in the contract, and is disclosed below. The
average interest rate is based on the outstanding balances at the end of the financial year.

The followmg table details the notional principal amounts and remaining terms of mterest rate swap

"contracts- outstanding as at the reporting date:

Cash flow hedge

- The fair value of derivatives at the balance sheet date was:

- Average contract fixed

interest rate .. Fair value " Notional principal value

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 - 2017

: % %. €000 €'000 €000 €000
More thar} 1year 3.51 4.03 (70,953) (851.345) ' 510,728 513,217

"~ The above profile is based on the maturity date of the facility, whereas the proﬁie within the balance

sheet is based on the current terms of the facilities which renew throughout the period to maturity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

19 Commitments

The commitments to third parties at 31, December 2018 and 31 December 2017 were as follows:

2018 - 2017
A (restated)
€000 , - €000
Lease commitments - land and buildings | ‘ - 39,516 - 39,516

Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellablé operating leases are as follows:

Expiry date: . . C
Up to 1 year - 1,899 , 1,899
1to 5 years . 7,654 7,654
Over 5 years ' : : - . 29,962 - 29,962

39,516 39,516

The disclosures for the lease commitments for-2017 have been restated to reflect the value of future
minimum lease- payments on land and buildings. Within the 2017 accounts future finance lease
commitment values were included rather than the future commitments in relation to operating leases.
This restatement has no impact on the primary financial statements within these accounts.

20 . Notes to the cash flow

Operating profit
Depreciation / amortisation -
(Loss) / profit on sale of fixed assets
Payment of income tax.
. Increase in provisions
Movement in debtors
Movement in creditors

Year ended

Year ended

2018 2017

. €000 €000
93,233 86,477
54,176 53,741
- 166 (353)
(17,441) (22,496)
200 -
(5,311) 6,002
(353) 5516
124,670 128,887
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20 " Notes to the cash flow (continued)

-Analysis of movemehf in net debt

€000

€000 €000 €000
31 Décember 2017 Cash movements Non cash 31 December
’ : movements 2018
Cash and éash 9,513 (1,694) - 7819
equivalents -
Bank loans - {(14,722) © 1,453 - : '(13,269)
Shareholder - (250,700) 700 - (250,000)
loans ) .
Bonds (5639,936) 60,402 (1,135) (480,669)
. (805,358) 62,555 (1,135) (743,938)
Net debt (795,845_) © 60,861 (1,135) - (736,119) .
21 Deferred tax . .
Deferred tax movements across the period is as shown below:
- : , : €000 €000 €000
Deferred tax balance sheet analysis: - ' '
' : : : Deferred Deferred Net
tax asset tax liability .
AAt 31 December 2017 25,144  (151,527) (126,383)
. Credited to profit and loss (318) 3,563 3,245
Charged to other comprehensive income (3,519) - (3,519)
At 31 December 2018 21,307 (147,964) (126,657)
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Further analysis:
Tax losses On property  Fair value of Other Total
plant and SWAPS :
- equipment '
At 31 December 2017 256 (155,206) 20,829 7,738  (126,383)
Credited to profit and (256) (2,226) 8 5,720 3,246
loss 4 o :
Charged to other - L - (3,520) .- (3,520)
comprehensive . ' -
income ) . :
At 31 December 2018 h - (157,432) 13,458 (126,657)

17,317

“Other” includes that created on the revaluation of tangible fixed assets at acquisition and the fair
value movement of swaps. Deferred tax assets have only been provided for in.the financial
~ statements to the extent that the directors of the Company feel that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits arising in the foreseeable future against which to recover the asset.'
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22 -Related party transactlons

Intercompany . loans of €250,000,000 are held with Well 'Diamond -Development Limited
(€125,000,000) -and with Good Chain Investment Limited (€125,000,000), being the two parent
companies of UKRT. Interest charged on these loans within the period was €22,520,000.

23 Ultimate controlling party )

Well Dlamond Development Limited and Good Chain Investment Limited each hold a 50% holding in
the group and as such there is no ultimate controlllng party The ultimate parent undertakings and
registered offices are shown below :

Sharehoider . . . * Ultimate parent undertaking ’
Well Diamond Development Limited - CK Hutchison Holdings Limited

Registered office: Clarendon Office, HM11, Bermuda

Good Chain investment Limited Power Assets Holdings- lelted

Registered office: Unit 2005. 20/F Cheung Kong Center 2
Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
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Company Balance Sheet

as at 31 December 2018

' : 2018’ 12017
e — A : ) "7 Notes €000 . - €000
Non-current assets -
Investments
24 328,500 328,500
Current assets .
Due from group companies . ' . 26 _ 15,973 557
~ Cash and cash equivalents : 29 1
, 16,002 - 558
Total assets ; | T 344502 329,058
Current liabilities : ‘ : '
Trade and other payables C27 (32,152) (2,513)
Net current assets v » . __(16,150) _(1,955)
Non-current liabilities ' ‘ .
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one . 26 - {250,000) (250,700)
year -
Total liabilities ' ' ‘ (282,152) ' (253,213)
Net assets . ' 62,350 75,845
Equity :
Called up share capital : 28 : ‘ - -
- Share premium account 28 78,500 78,500 -
Retained earnings ' . (16,150) . (2,655)
Equity attributable to owners of the company : . 62,350 75,845

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2017, no separate statement of income or statement -
of comprehensive income of the company is presented. The loss for the financial period of the parent

' company was €13,495,000 (2017 ~ profit of €2,649,000) and total comprehensive loss was €13,495,000
(2017 - income of €2,649 000)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated balarce sheet.

The financial statements of UK ReneWable HoldCo 1 Limited, Regiétered number 09775646, were
approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for issue on 27 September 2019 and sugned on its
behalf by;

Ak 5 %»ﬁ

MJ Hors!ey, Director

27 September 2019

UK RENEWADLE {10LDCO 1 LIMITED ~ 58




Company;Statement’of Change in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2018

‘Notes Called up ‘Share  Retained Total
P share = premium earnings
. capital -
e e e S . .€000 .- €000- - €000 - - €000
At 31 December 2016 : 28 - 78500 1989 80489
Dividends declared on equity shares 6 .‘ ‘ ) - - (7,293) (7,293)

: Total‘comprehensive income : : - .- - 2.649 2.649
At 31 December 2017 ' - 78,500 (2.655) 75,845
Total comprehensive loss ' col B - - (13,495) (13,495)
At 31 December 2018 S . . 78500 (16,150) 62,350

UK RENEWABLE HOLDCO 1 LIMITED 59



Accounting Policies Applicable to the Company

for the year ended 31 December 2018

* The separate financial statements of the company are presented as required by the Companies Act

2006. The company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 (Financial Reporting

_.Standard 100). issued. by.the-Einancial-Reporting-Council. The financial statements have therefore

been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 (Financial Reporting Standard 101). Reduced Disclosure

« Framework as issued by the Financial Reporting Council incorporating the Amendments to FRS 101
issued by the FRC in July 2015 and July 2016. :

As permitted by FRS 101, the company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available
under that standard in relation to share-based payments, financial instruments, capital management,
presentation of comparative information in respect of certain assets, presentation of a cash-flow
statement and certain related party transactions. The Company’s shareholders have been notified in
“writing about the intention to take advantage of the disclosure exemptlons and no objections have
been received. :

The Company also intends to take advantage of these exemptions in the financial statements to be
issued in the following year. Objections may be served on the Company by shareholders holding in
aggregate 5 per cent or more of the totai a!located shares in the Company. They should be served
no later than 13 December 2018.

Where required; equivalent disclosures are given in the consolidated financial state_mentsl- The -
financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the remeasurement
of certain financial instruments to faif value. The principal accounting policies adopted are the same
as those set out in the consolidated financial statements except as noted below.

lnvestments in subsidiaries and assomates are stated at cost less, where appropnate provisions for
“impairment.
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24 Investmen'ts ,
2018
€'000
Subsidiary undertakings ) .. ' 328,500

2017
€000

328,500

ARSI T, AT Sa

SuBsidiaries represént a 100% holding in the ordihary share cépital of UK Renewable Holdco 2

Limited and UK Renewable Holdco 3 Limited. Both company's principal activity is to actasa holding
company, and both were incorporated in the United Kingdom and registered in England and Wales.

UK Renewable Holdco 3 Limited is the parent company of:

Company name

Portugal Renewable Energy

tBEBWIND - Desen;lolvirt{enlo e Projectos, S.A:
JIBERWIND Ii Produgio - Soc. Unip., Lda .
Ibewvind_lll Produgdo, S.A. .

A Bussola Vanguarda -4 Parque Edlico Unipessoal, Lda.
Persisteverde - Parque Edlico, Unipessoal, Lda.
Espiral Elementar - Parque Edlico, Unipessoal, Lda.
PESM - Parque €dlico da Serra das Meadas, S.A.
PESL - Pa'rque Edlico da Serra do Larouco S.A.
ENERFLORA - Produgio de Eﬁergi; Eléctrica, Lda
PEVB-Parque Eélico Vila do Bi;po, Lda
PECF - Parque Edlico de Chﬁé Falcdo, Lda

. PEL-Parqué Eélico da Lous3, Lda
Parque Eélico de Trevim, Lda
PESB - Parque Edlico da Sefra de Bornes, S.A
HIDROMARAO-Sociedade Produtora de Energia, S.A

. Monte Agrago-Energias Alternativas, Lda.

ENTREVENTOS-Energias Renovaveis, S.A:

Parque de Pampilhosa da Serra, S.A.

Parque Eélico de Malhadas Géis, S.A.

PESB I, Sociedadé Unipessoal, Lda.

PETM - Sociedade Unipessoal, Lda.

Parque Eélico de Trevim ll, Soc. Unipessoal, Lda..

Poderosa Equagdo - Parque Eélico, Unipessoal, L_da.

Location
' Algés
Algés
] 'Rio Maior’
Algés
Algés
.Algés
Algés
Lamego
Montalegre
Mafra
vila do Bispo
_ Porto Més
‘ Penela
Lousd -

" Alfindega-da-Fé
Vila Real
Mante Agrago

Coimbra .‘
Pampilhosa da Serra
Pamgpilhosa da Serra

Algés
‘ Algés
Algés

Algés

Activity

Holding company

Renewable energy .

Renewable energy

Renewable energy

Renewable energy
Renewable energy
Renewable energy

Renewable energy

Renewable energy

Renewable energy

Renewable energy

Renéwable energy -

Renewable energy

Renewable energy

Renewable energy

Renewable energy

Renewable energy

Renewable energy

. Renewable energy

Renewable energy
Renewable energy
Renewable energy
Renewable energy

Renewable energy

The above companies 'h,av.e a registered address of: Rua Joao Chagas No53, Piso, Freguesia de Alges, Alges

Shareholding o
100.000%
100.000%
100.000%
100.000%
100.000%
100.000%
100.000%
100.000%
100.000%
100.000%
100.000%
100.000%
100.060%
100.000%
160.00‘0%
100.000%
75.000%
51.001%
106;000% :
100.000%
100.000%
100.000%

© 100.000%

100.000%
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24 Investments (continued)

Profits arising from non-controlling interests total €617,000 (2017 - €1,512,000). Details of non-
controllmg interests can be found in note 17.

25 Proflt for the year

As permltted by 5408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has elected not to present its own
statement of income or statement of other comprehensive ‘income for the period. The loss’
attributable to the Company is disclosed in the footnote to the Company s balance sheet. .

The. auditor's remuneration for audut and other services is disclosed in note 3 to the consolldated
financial statements.

The company has no employees (2017 - nil).

26  Due from group companies
2018 - 2017
€'000 : €'000
Current assets ) :
Doe from group companies _ _ 15,973 - 557
Non-current liabilities : . . .
Shareholder loans ' - (250,000) (250,700)

No interest was applied to ‘due from group companies’. The balance has been settled prior to the
' sugnlng of these financial statements

Shareholder loans mature in 2035.and- carry interest of 8.0% payable annually. The loans are held
with Well Diamond Development Limited (€125,000,000) (2017 - €125,350,000) and with Good .
Chain Investment Limited (€125, 000 000) (2017 - €125,350,000), belng the two parent companies of

- UKR1.

-27  Trade and other payables .
' 2018 2017.

€000 €'000 .
Accruals and defe‘rred income : : 2,513 2, 513
Due to group companies . . _ 29,659 .
' ) C ' ) . 32,172 2, 513
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28 Called up share capitél and reserves

Share capital and share premium

s e . 2018 2017

T s c €000 €000
Allotted, called-up and fully-pai_d share: .

, 1' ordinary share of €1 K ‘ . v - : -

Share premium account _ | o - 78,500 78,500

The Corhpany has one class of ordinary share which carries no right to fixed income. During the
priof périod one ordinary share of €1 was issued for €78,500,000. Share premium of €78,499,999
was created on issue of the one share, being the excess paid above the nominal value.’

Retained earnings

. Retained earnings are the accumulative earning retained by the company.
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